
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
TARC BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

Meeting Notice: 

The TARC Board of Directors holds a monthly meeting of the Finance subcommittee. The next 
meeting will be held at: 

 
TARC’s Headquarters, Board Room 
1000 W. Broadway, Louisville, KY  40203  

 
Tuesday, June 20, 2023 at 1:30 p.m.  

This meeting is also being held via teleconference as permitted by KRS 61.826.  

Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons with a disability may request a reasonable 
accommodation for assistance with the meeting or meeting materials. Please contact Stephanie 
Isaacs at 502.561.5103. Requests made as early as possible will allow time to arrange 
accommodation. 
  



FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
TARC BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

Agenda – June 20, 2023 
 

I. Quorum Call/Call to Order     Gary Dryden  1:30 

a. Approval of April Meeting Minutes 
b. Approval of May Meeting Minutes     

 
II. Staff Reports and Presentations        1:40 – 1:50 

a. April 2023 Financial Statements    Tonya Carter 
 

III. Action Items / Presentations for the Board Meeting     1:50 – 2:35  
a. Resolution 2023 - 7 

Capital Program of Projects      Geoffrey Hobin 
 

b. Resolution 2023 – 11  
On Board Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) Chris Ward / Carrie Butler 
 

c. Resolution 2023 – 12 
Ballistic Protection for Historic Union Station   Geoffrey Hobin 
 

d. Resolution 2023 – 13  
Architectural, Engineering, Environmental, Planning  
Professional Services Indefinite Delivery/ Quantity  Geoffrey Hobin  
 

e. Resolution 2023 – 14 
TARC Pension Plan Board Members    Matt Abner 
 
   

IV. Proposed Agenda Items / Procurements        Carrie Butler  2:35 – 2:40 
a. Renovation of 925 W. Broadway facility 
b. Energy as a Service 
c. Experimental Shared Mobility on Demand 

 
V. Adjournment          2:45 

 



FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
TARC BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

April 2023 Finance Subcommittee Meeting Minutes   

The Finance Subcommittee of Transit Authority of River City (TARC) met on Tuesday, April 18, 2023 at 1:30 
P.M. in person at TARC’s headquarters, 1000 West Broadway in the Board Room and virtually via 
teleconference as permitted by KRS 61.826. 

Members Virtual                        
Carla Dearing          
Gary Dryden (joined in @ 1:56)   

Call to Order 

Carla Dearing called the meeting to order at 1:34 p.m.  

Financial Reports 

Tonya Carter presented Financials  
February Financial Summary. See Financials in packets 

Board Resolutions   

Carrie Butler presented Resolution 2023-06 TARC Fiscal Year 2024 Budget  

Refer to PowerPoint Presentation  

o Industry outlook 
o TARC outlook 
o Revenues and Expenses over 10 years  
o Accomplishments for the year:  

 significant progress in our Fleet replacement plan for both zero-emission battery, electric 
buses and clean diesel 

 installed a solar array project on Education and Training Facility 
 implemented Fleet watch which is a fuel management system 
 continue the work towards sustainability and improving our operations to be more cost-

effectiveness and environmentally friendly 
 operate three new Grant funded routes 
 held a number of employee focused events invites, which included retirees 
 made some significant improvements in our coach operator and onboarding program 
 improvements to our training program with our new director 

o Strategic plan 2023  
 Success Outcomes; 
 Customer Experience 
 Employee Engagement; 
 Financial Health;  
 Community Value; 
 TARC Scorecard. 



FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
TARC BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Budget Planning  

o Ridership in three years, five years, and where ridership will be further into the future  
o Federal, State and Local funds 
o How to balance our need for operating dollars 
o Very stable near-term position 
o Some manageable increases in pension costs 
o Diesel fuel price 

 Tonya Carter presented Budget Key Considerations and Assumptions  

         Refer to PowerPoint Presentation  

o FY2024 Budgeted Expenses & Revenues  
o Operating Budget FY2024 
o Operating Budget FY2024 by Department  
o Capital Budget FY 2024 Capital  
o Options for moving toward closing the gap   

Carrie Butler presented the steps to Increase the 1974 MTTF through Tax Referendum 

 Refer to PowerPoint presentation  

Carla Dearing asked if the tax caps for various options when asking the council are fixed.  Pat Mulvihill 
explained that the caps are fixed. When the Transit Authority was established, those were and still are 
the three only ways you can fund a public transit system. In order to change this specific matter, we 
would have to approach the State Legislature.  
 

Carrie Butler informed the board that if they wished to move toward a Tax Referendum that an outside 
group would need to be brought in to help formulate a plan to move such an initiative forward.  

Committee members discussed serval scenarios of increased revenue based on changes with the 1974 
MTTF through Tax Referendum.  

Carrie Butler closed out Resolution 2023 -06 TARC Fiscal Year Budget 2024.  Some items in this budget are:  

o Broadway All the Way is a significant complete street projects in partnership with Metro Louisville 
and KYTC 

o Onboard intelligent transportation system 
o Mobile ticketing  
o Rider and Community survey results will be shared 

 
 
    Melissa Fuqua presented Resolution 2022-05 Amendment to HRIS services 
                 Addition of Background Checks to ADP platform  

o Different Modules within the overall ADP system 
o Background checks to do multi-county and to use aliases  
o National background checks 



FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
TARC BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

o Amendment to our contract with ADP to include the background checks 
 
Proposed Agenda Items  
 
 Carrie Butler presented proposed agenda items  

o Presentation of Rider and Community Survey Results by Transpro  
o Marketing, Communication and Government Affairs 
o Ballistic Protection for Historic Union Station 
o Fire Alarm Testing  
o Commodity suppliers bus transmission and other related components for hybrids and bus batteries 

Meeting Minutes 
 
 
Carla Dearing asked to approve the minutes of the February and March meetings.  
 
Carla Dearing made a motion to accept the minutes and Gary Dryden seconded the motion to approve the 
February and March Finance Committee Minutes.  
 

Adjournment  

Carla Dearing made a motion to adjourn, Gary Dryden seconded at 2:14 and the motion was unanimously 
approved.  

         

 

 



FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
TARC BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

May 2023 Finance Subcommittee Meeting Minutes  

The Finance Subcommittee of Transit Authority of River City (TARC) met on Tuesday, May 16, 2023 at 1:30 
p.m. in person at TARC’s headquarters, 1000 West Broadway in the Board Room and virtually via 
teleconference as permitted by KRS 61.826. 

Members Virtual                                
Gary Dryden   

Call to Order 
Gary Dryden called the meeting to order at 1:32 p.m.  

April Finance Subcommittee meeting minutes moved to June meeting for approval.  

Financial Reports 
Tonya Carter presented the March 2023 Financial Summary. 
See Financial Statements in the meeting packet.  
 
Board Resolutions  
Matt Abner presented Amendment to Resolution 2202-01 Financial Management Oversight Policy Revision, 
including TARC’s Financial Management Policy 2023   

Aida Copic presented Resolution 2023-08   Implementation of August 2023 Service Changes      
• Service Equity Analysis for August 2023 Service; and  
• Public Comments Summary August 2023 

 

Geoffrey Hobin presented Resolution 2023 – 09 Mobile Ticketing Services      

Alex Posorske presented Resolution 2023- 10 Government Relations, Public Relations, Marketing, and 
Creative Services Consulting and Professional Services 

Maria Harris presented the following contract amendments: 

• Amendment to Resolution 2021-12 Transmission Parts;  
• Amendment to Resolution 2021-05 Hybrid Bus Batteries; and 
• Amendment to Resolution 2022-03 Security Services.   

   

Proposed Agenda Items  

Carrie Butler presented the proposed agenda items:            

a. On Board ITS; 
b. Architecture, Engineering, Environmental and Planning ID/IQ; 
c. Ballistic Protection for Historic Union Station; and  
d. Renovation of 925 W. Broadway facility 

 

Gary Dryden adjourned the meeting at 2:09 p.m. 























 

MEMORANDUM 
To: TARC Board of Directors 

From: Carrie Butler, Executive Director 

Date: June 27, 2023 

Re: Resolution 2023–07  Capital Assistance Grants for Federal Fiscal Year 2023 

Every year TARC plans for the best and most important use of its Federal funds for capital projects 
and plans. And, each year the public has an opportunity for input on the planned use of these 
funds and associated capital projects. The planning is done in coordination with the Kentuckiana 
Regional Planning and Development Agency (KIPDA) and in keeping with Federal statute. The 
results of this work are TARC’s Program of Projects (POP), which is reflected in part in TARC’s 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2023 budget. Included with this memorandum is a copy of the budget for TARC’s 
FY 2023 Capital Program of Projects (POP) utilizing Federal formula funds from Sections 5307, 
5310 and 5339. 

TARC’s FY 2023 POP identifies projects to be funded in a grant application for Federal Fiscal 
Year 2023 Sections 5307 and 5339 capital assistance apportioned to TARC through the 
Bipartisan Infrastructure Legislation (BIL), which includes the funds appropriated for 2023 
distributed to transit agencies nationwide according to a formula. The amount is a slight increase 
from the funding received in 2022. The grant that will be filed is for FY 2023 Section 5307 and 
5339 funds for a total of $26,823,812 ($21,431,145 federal, and the remainder being local match, 
or non-federal share); Section 5310 funds are not included in this total as these funds are awarded 
through a competitive process overseen by TARC. Major projects and expenses included this 
year are: 
• The replacement of buses that have exceeded TARC’s 15-year useful life benchmark; 
• Replacement of TARC’s CAD/AVL system, which has exceeded its expected life; 
• Renovation projects prioritized through TARC’s Asset Management planning process; 
• Reimbursement of Capital Maintenance costs; and 
• As much as 40% of the cost of contracting for paratransit service. 

This budget, along with the POP, was the subject of a public meeting held on Zoom and Facebook 
Live, Wednesday, May 17, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. TARC notified the public about the meeting through 
a posting on our News and Events page and a series of social media posts.  

The projects listed are in keeping with the FY 2023 capital budget as adopted by the Board 
through Resolution 2022- 14. This resolution seeks the authority to file the grant(s).  

Please call me at 561-5100 with any questions. 
  



 

RESOLUTION 2023-07 
Capital Assistance Grants for Federal Fiscal Year 2023 

A Resolution authorizing the Executive Director to file an application with the Department of 
Transportation, United States of America, for a grant under the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 
1964, as amended. 

WHEREAS, the Secretary of Transportation is authorized to make grants for a mass 
transportation program of projects; and 

WHEREAS, the contract for financial assistance will impose certain obligations upon the 
applicant, including the provision by it of the local share of the project costs; and 

WHEREAS, it is required by the U. S. Department of Transportation, in accordance with the 
provision of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, that the applicant gives 
assurances that it will comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the U. S. Department 
of Transportation requirements thereunder; and 

WHEREAS, it is the goal of the applicant that Disadvantaged Business Enterprises be utilized to 
the fullest extent possible in connection with these projects, and that definite procedures shall be 
established and administered to ensure that disadvantaged businesses shall have the maximum 
feasible opportunity to compete for construction contracts when procuring construction contracts, 
supplies, equipment contracts, or consultant and other services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Transit Authority of River 
City that: 

1.  The Executive Director is authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the Transit 
Authority of River City with the U.S. Department of Transportation to aid in the financing of 
planning, capital and/or operating assistance projects pursuant to Section 5307 of the Urban 
Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as amended.  
2.  The Board Chair, Vice-Chair, or Executive Director is authorized to execute and file with 
such applications an assurance or any other document required by the U. S. Department of 
Transportation effectuating the purpose of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 
3.  The Executive Director is authorized to furnish such additional information as the U. S. 
Department of Transportation may require in connection with the application for the program of 
projects and budget. 
4.  The Executive Director is authorized to set forth and execute affirmative disadvantaged 
business policies in connection with the program of projects and budget procurement needs. 
5.  The Executive Director is authorized to execute grant agreements on behalf of the Transit 
Authority of River City with the U. S. Department of Transportation for aid in the financing of the 
planning, capital and/or operating assistance program of projects and budget. 

 
…continued… 



 

 

CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned duly qualified and acting Chair of the Transit Authority of River City certifies that 
the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution, adopted at a legally convened meeting of 
the Board of Directors held on June 27, 2023. 

 

ADOPTED THIS 27th DAY OF JUNE 2023 

 

_______________________________ 

Chair of the Board of Directors 

 

 



 

MEMORANDUM 
To: TARC Board of Directors 

From: Carrie Butler, Executive Director 

Date: June 27, 2023 

Re: Resolution 2023 - 11 On-Board Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) (RFP 20221777) 

 
Transit Authority of River City (TARC) has an aging ITS that includes computer-aided dispatch, automatic 
vehicle location tracking, and communications systems on all fixed route vehicles.  The system was 
originally implemented in early 2009 and has not been updated or upgraded and has reached end of useful 
life. A new system will allow TARC to improve operations through enhanced reporting functions, new 
equipment and update software applications for a modern system.  
 
TARC staff have been working on a solution to the above challenges and officially began by issuing a 
Request for Information that resulted in nine proposals in September 2022. The RFI allowed TARC staff 
to see features and understand more about how a new system could function. Following the RFI, TARC 
staff developed a scope of work, which included a functional requirements matrix and released a Requests 
for Proposals (RFP) 20221777 on December 2, 2022. The RFP was seeking the provision of an integrated 
on-board intelligent transportation system solution including voice radio, computer-aided dispatch (CAD), 
automatic vehicle location (AVL), passenger counters, automated announcements, headsigns, fareboxes, 
cameras, and vehicle monitoring. Further, the RFP asked for proposals on yard management, wayside 
signage, and other vendor specific options.  

The Procurement Department examined all submitted proposals and eight (8) met the minimum 
requirements and were deemed responsive. An evaluation committee, which consisted of nine (9) subject-
matter experts, stakeholders and project leads, evaluated and scored the eight (8) proposals and deemed 
four (4) as being the most responsible: Avail, Clever Devices, Equans, and Vontas/Trapeze. These short-
listed proposers were invited to Step-2 interviews to make presentations to demonstrate the organizations’ 
ITS solution as to its competencies, capabilities and resources needed to perform and successfully meet 
TARC’s project objectives. 

After the interviews and presentations, the Procurement staff asked the vendors for a Best and Final Offer 
(BAFO) and then the evaluation committee members re-evaluated and scored according to the evaluation 
criteria in the RFP. The committee selected and recommended for award the ITS solution offered by Avail 
Technologies, Inc. The Committee determined that this ITS solution provided the best value in order to 
meet TARC’s objectives. In addition, the Procurement Department conducted a price/cost analysis and 
deemed the offer is fair and reasonable. The base cost for the ITS solution includes: equipment, software, 
training, installation, spares, maintenance and licenses for years one through five for a total of $4,472,826. 
Additionally, the proposal includes an option for support and maintenance in years six through ten for 
$1,060,420. Other features such as yard management, wayside signs, routers, and VoIP total $5,294,344.  

At this time, the Board of Directors is hereby requested to authorize the Executive Director to enter into an 
agreement with an initial term of five (5) years for an ITS solution provided by Avail Technologies, Inc. for 
a not to exceed amount of $4,472,826. If additional options or years six through ten are desired, these will 
be presented to the Board for consideration at that time. Please call with questions. Thank you. 

 



 
RESOLUTION 2023 – 11  
On-Board Intelligent Transportation System 

A Resolution authorizing the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with an initial term of five (5) 
years for a not-to-exceed amount of $4,472,826: 

WHEREAS, TARC seeks an on-board intelligent transportation system to provide and assist TARC with 
its computer-aided dispatch, automatic vehicle locator and communications; and,  

WHEREAS, a competitive solicitation, request for proposal was requested on December 2, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, TARC received eight (8) proposals which met the minimum requirements set forth in the RFP 
and TARC deemed responsive; and  

WHEREAS, the Evaluation Committee then determined that four (4) of the eight (8) proposals, which were 
made by Avail, Clever Devices, Equans, and Vontas/Trapeze were the most responsible, and thus, each 
organization was provided the opportunity for a Step-2 interview to present their respective ITS solution; 
and  

WHEREAS, the Evaluation Committee determined after the Step-2 interviews and a Best and Final Offer 
that the proposal from Avail Technologies, Inc. was deemed the most responsive, responsible and offered 
TARC the best value; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Transit Authority of River City 
that: 

The Executive Director is hereby authorized to enter into an agreement for an initial term of five (5) years 
with Avail Technologies, Inc. for a not-to-exceed amount of $4,472,826.  

 

ADOPTED THIS 27th DAY OF JUNE 2023 

 

_______________________________ 

Chair of the Board of Directors 



 

MEMORANDUM 
To: TARC Board of Directors 

From: Carrie Butler, Executive Director 

Date: June 27, 2023 

Re: Resolution 2023 – 12  Ballistic Protection for Union Station 

In Louisville and across the country, there has been an increase in firearm discharges and 
shootings. As such, Union Station has had gunfire and evidence of firearm use as seen by bullet 
casings found in and around the property. There have been four separate incidents of bullets 
penetrating windows on the north façade of Union Station; two in Board Room and two in Human 
Resources. Another incident occurred when a rock was thrown through the Human Resources 
office, while occupied.  

Ensuring the safety of our employees and guests is of the utmost importance, and so we asked 
our architectural consultants at Studio Kremer to provide a design that would prevent bullets from 
penetrating our windows.  The result is a project that would replace all the existing storm windows 
on the north and some of the windows on the east and west facades of Union Station with new 
storm windows that use ballistic glazing.  Studio Kremer worked with and received approval from 
the Kentucky Heritage Council (the State Historic Preservation Office) for the final design, which 
is required by Union Station’s status as a building on the National Register of Historic Places.  

On April 5, 2023, TARC’s Procurement Department released an Invitation to Bid (ITB 20221785) 
for the manufacture and installation of ballistic protection panels at Union Station.  Following a 
pre-bid conference and a period of time for questions and responses, two proposals were 
received.  

The Procurement Department examined the submitted bids and conducted a price/cost analysis.  
The department determined that WR Cole provided the only complete proposal, and that the bid 
price was fair and reasonable.  The bid price of $550,000 was $150,000 less than our cost 
estimate for the project.  

At this time, the Board is hereby requested to allow the Executive Director the authority to enter 
into a contract with WR Cole for a total cost not to exceed of $577,500. This amount includes a 
5% contingency. Funds for this project will come from security enhancement obligations from 
several of our Urbanized Area Formula grants.  TARC is required to commit one percent (1%) of 
our formula allocation each year to security enhancements.  We have pooled several years 
apportionments for this purpose. 

Please call me at 561-5100 if you have any questions. Thank you. 

 
  



 

 

RESOLUTION 2023 - 12 
Ballistic Protection for Union Station Windows 

A Resolution authorizing the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with WR Cole for the 
manufacture and installation of ballistic panels on the windows of Union Station at a cost not to 
exceed $577,500: 

WHEREAS, in the recent past there have been several incidents of bullets penetrating windows 
on the north façade of Union Station; and 

WHEREAS, the safety of employees and visitors to Union Station is of the utmost importance; 
and 

WHEREAS, TARC seeks for a contractor to manufacture and install ballistic panels on all the 
windows on the north face and some of the windows on the east and west faces of Union Station; 
and 

WHEREAS, TARC’s consulting architect designed a solution that has, as required, been 
approved by the Kentucky Heritage Council; and  

WHEREAS, a competitive solicitation, invitation to bid 20221785 was issued on April 5, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, TARC received a proposal from WR Cole that was deemed responsive and 
responsible, and within our cost estimate for this project; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Transit Authority of River 
City that: 

The Executive Director is hereby authorized to enter into an agreement with WR Cole for the 
manufacture and installation of ballistic panels on the windows of Union Station at a cost not to 
exceed $577,500, which includes a 5% contingency. 

 

ADOPTED THIS 27th DAY OF JUNE 2023 

 

_______________________________ 

Chair of the Board of Directors 



 

MEMORANDUM 
To: TARC Board of Directors 

From: Carrie Butler, Executive Director 

Date: June 27, 2023 

Re: Resolution 2023 – 13  Architectural, Engineering, Environmental and Transit Planning 
Services – Indefinite Delivery and Indefinite Quantity (IDIQ) 

TARC has maintained indefinite delivery/indefinite quantity (ID/IQ) (i.e. on-call, professional services) 
contracts for Architectural, Engineering and Environmental services so that as needs arise, TARC can 
utilize these services. Transit planning work has been awarded separately under a set contract, most 
recently for transit scheduling, comprehensive operations analysis and long term planning. TARC’s 
current contract for Architectural and Engineering and Environmental consulting services has expired, 
although work that has commenced will continue until completion.  

With these contracts expired, and with an award of transit planning grant funds, the request for these 
services was developed into a comprehensive Architectural, Engineering, Environmental and Transit 
Planning services ID/IQ. To that end, on December 30, 2022, the Procurement Department released 
Request for Qualification (RFQ) 20221780. The RFQ sought proposals from qualified firms on an 
indefinite delivery and indefinite quantity, or task order basis.   

The Procurement Department examined all submitted proposals and four met the minimum 
requirements and were deemed responsive. An evaluation committee consisting of six subject-matter 
experts and stakeholders, evaluated and scored the four proposals. Three of the proposals fell within a 
competitive range and were selected for interviews. The three were from Kersey & Kersey, Inc., Schmidt 
Associates, and the incumbent Studio Kremer Architects. Those three firms made presentations and 
responded to questions from the evaluation committee on May 31, 2023. 

After the presentations, the evaluation committee members reevaluated and scored according to the 
original criteria in the solicitation. The committee unanimously recommended an award to Schmidt. The 
committee agreed that while all three firms were capable and had assembled high quality teams, 
Schmidt’s team, which includes Jarrett Walker + Associates, Gresham Smith, and Linebach 
Funkhouser, was most likely to help TARC meet its objectives over the next few years. 

A first-year scope of work will include the aforementioned transit planning grants, Route Restoration 
and Areas of Persistent Poverty for $1,230,000 (no local match) and prioritized rehabilitation or 
construction projects that will not exceed $1,750,000 (from TARC’s FY 2022 and 2023 formula grants, 
local match is needed). This Resolution asks the Board to grant the Executive Director the authority to 
request rates from and negotiate contract terms with Schmidt Associates. Further, assuming those 
negotiations are successful, the Resolution asks the Board to grant the Executive Director the authority 
to enter into a contract with an initial term of three (3) years with an option of an additional two-year 
term for task-order based architectural, engineering, environmental and transit planning services.  

Please call me at 561-5100 if you have any questions. Thank you. 

 



RESOLUTION 2023-13 
Architectural, Engineering, Environmental and Transit Planning 
Services – Indefinite Delivery And Indefinite Quantity (IDIQ) 

A Resolution authorizing the Executive Director to negotiate and enter into a contract with Schmidt 
Associates for professional architectural, engineering, environmental and transit planning services for 
an initial term of three (3) years with an optional two-year term: 

WHEREAS, TARC seeks a contract to provide TARC with on-going task-order based architectural, 
engineering, environmental and transit planning services; and  

WHEREAS, a competitive solicitation, request for qualification was requested on December 30, 2022; 
and 

WHEREAS, TARC received four (4) responsible and responsive proposals for RFQ 20221780; and 

WHEREAS, after oral presentations from each of the three short-listed firms, TARC’s evaluation 
committee unanimously recommended an award to Schmidt Associates; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Transit Authority of River City 
that: 

The Executive Director is hereby authorized to negotiate and enter into a contract with Schmidt 
Associates for professional architectural, engineering, environmental and transit planning services for 
an initial term of three (3) years with an optional two-year term. 

ADOPTED THIS 27th DAY OF JUNE 2023 

_______________________________ 

Chair of the Board of Directors 



 

MEMORANDUM 
To: TARC Board of Directors 

From: Carrie Butler, Executive Director 

Date: June 27, 2023 

Re: Resolution 2023 – 14  TARC Pension Plan Board Members  

 
The Transit Authority of River City Employee’s Amended Retirement Plan (“Plan”) was created in 
1960 by Louisville Transit Company. Participants of this Plan chose to continue under this Plan 
rather than participate in the Kentucky Retirement System. To date, there are twenty-seven (27) 
participants remaining in this Plan.  
 
This Plan is governed by a Retirement Board.  Section 8.1 of the Plan provides that the Retirement 
Board shall be comprised of six (6) members, three (3) from TARC and three (3) for the 
employees. Their duties shall be to administer and carry out the terms and objectives of the Plan 
which include but are not limited to directing the trustee to pay from the trust fund any fees and 
benefit payments to participants in the Plan. The Plan calls for the TARC Board of Directors 
(“Board”) to appoint three TARC staff members to the Retirement Board. 
 
This Resolution requests the TARC Board of Directors appoint three (3) staff members of TARC 
to the Retirement Board pursuant to the Plan. One member must be selected from the Executive 
Office and one from the Finance Department. The other member can be selected from anywhere 
across the TARC enterprise. This memorandum and resolution propose the following staff 
members be considered for appointment to this Board: 
 

Carrie Butler - Executive Director or her designee, 
Rob Stephens - Chief Operating Officer or designee; and 
Matthew Abner – Assistant Director of Finance or his designee.  

 
 
Please call me at 502-561-5100, if you have any questions. 
 
  



 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2023 – 14 
TARC Pension Plan Board Members 
 
Pursuant to section 8.1 of the Transit Authority of River City Employee’s Amended Retirement 
Plan (“Plan”), the TARC Board of Directors shall have the authority to designate three (3) staff 
members of and for TARC to the Retirement Board (“Board”). 
 
WHEREAS, the Board shall consist of six (6) members, three (3) shall be representative of and 
for the employees, and three (3) shall be representatives of and for TARC; and 
 
WHEREAS, the three (3) representatives of and for TARC shall be comprised of at least one 
member of the Executive Office and one member of Finance; and 
 
WHEREAS, those three (3) representatives of and for TARC as appointed by the TARC Board of 
Directors shall have the ability to select their designees that shall also be comprised of at least 
one member of the Executive Office and one member of Finance; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of The Transit Authority of 
River City that: 
 
Pursuant to the Transit Authority of River City Employee’s Amended Retirement Plan, the TARC 
Board of Directors shall hereby have the authority to appoint three (3) representatives of and for 
TARC to the Retirement Board and they are as follows: 
 Carrie Butler – Executive Director 
 Rob Stephens – Chief Operating Officer 
 Matthew Abner – Assistant Director of Finance 

 

ADOPTED THIS 27th DAY OF JUNE 2023 

 

_______________________________ 

Chair of the Board of Directors 








































































	TARC Finance Committee June 2023 Meeting Agenda
	April Finance Committee Meeting Minutes FINAL
	May Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
	April Financials for June Meeting
	Resolution 2023-07 Capital Program of Projects
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	Resolution 2023-11 On Board ITS
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	Resolution 2023-12 USTA Ballistic Protection
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	Resolution 2023-13 Arch Eng Plan Professional Services IDIQ
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	Resolution 2023-14 TARC  Pension Board Member Appointment
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	Pension Plan Document 1998 09 01 - 2001 10 31

